Policy Committee

|

THE ECONCMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

January 3, 2019
8:30 am
95 Perry Street, 51" Floor Conference Room
Buffalo, NY 14203

Call Meeting to Order

Approval of the December 6, 2018 Policy Committee Minutes (Pages 2-4)
Project Matrix (Page 5)

Unifrax Employment Discussion (Pages 6-15)

Adjournment — Next Meeting February 7, 2019 at 9:00 a.m.



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE
ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MEETING: December 6, 2018, at Erie County Industrial Development Agency,
95 Perry Street, 5% Floor Conference Room, Buffalo, New York

PRESENT: Rev. Mark E. Blue, Hon. William J. Krebs, Richard Lipsitz, Jr.,
Brenda W. McDuffie, Hon. Glenn R. Nellis, Laura Smith, David J.
State and Maria Whyte

ABSENT: Hon. April Baskin, Hon. Byron W. Brown, Hon. Johanna Coleman,

Mr. Richard Cummings, Colleen DiPirro and John J. Mudie

OTHERS PRESENT: Steve Weathers, Chief Executive Officer; John Cappellino, Executive
Vice President; Karen M. Fiala, Assistant Treasurer; and Robert G.
Murray, Secretary

There being a quorum present at 8:53 a.m., Mr. Lipsitz called the meeting of the Policy
Committee to order.

MINUTES

The minutes of the November 1, 2018 Policy Committee meeting were presented. Upon
motion made by Ms. McDuffie, and seconded by Ms. Whyte, the aforementioned Policy
Committee meeting minutes were unanimously approved.

PROJECT MATRIX

Mr. Lipsitz reviewed the Agency’s project matrix and directed that the report be received
and filed.

UNPAID TAX PROCEDURES

Mr. Cappellino reviewed the current process that Agency staff follows to implement the
Agency’s unpaid real property tax certification policy. Mr. Cappellino confirmed that prior to
submitting applications, applicants are required to sign a certification stating that neither the
owners of the company nor the company and its affiliates have any unpaid real property taxes on
any properties located within Erie County. When applications are received, Agency staff
requests that the Erie County Tax Department perform a search on the applicant and the property
address to ensure that taxes are current. Staff also conducts a search on the Erie County’s real
property website to determine if there are any outstanding taxes.

Page 1 of 3

2



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

Going forward, Agency staff has proposed to revise its procedures by amending the
Agency’s application for financial assistance to include a section requiring applicants to list all
Erie County properties in which the applicant holds at least a 25% ownership interest and
thereafter staff will request the Erie County Tax Department to perform a search on the applicant
and on those property addresses to confirm if taxes are current. In addition, prior to the project’s
closing date, Agency staff will perform an additional search on the Erie County tax website to
ensure that no outstanding tax events have occurred between approval and closing. In addition,
staff will require that all clients that have active PILOT Agreements be required to annually re-
certify that all taxes are current. Staff has indicated the certificate will be included within the
fourth quarter employment surveys that are provided to all recipients of financial assistance and
this new change will be implemented in the 2018 fourth quarter survey. General discussion
ensued and committee members requested that up to a 60-day cure period be incorporated, in the
event an unpaid tax issue arises to allow the company to cure the issue prior to triggering the
recapture policy.

Ms. Whyte then moved and Ms. McDuffie seconded to approve of the new procedures,
with the inclusion of a 60-day cure period, with respect to monitoring and enforcing the
Agency’s unpaid real property tax policy. Mr. Lipsitz called for the vote and the resolution was
unanimously approved.

UNIFRAX EMPLOYMENT DISCUSSION

Mr. Cappellino noted that in August 2014 the Agency approved of a sales tax and PILOT
abatement benefit to assist Unifrax in the expansion of its facility at Fire Tower Drive in the
Town of Tonawanda. As part of the material terms approved by the Board, Unifrax was required
to retain 268 employees and create an additional 21 positions by June 30, 2018. Accordingly,
Unifrax was required to have 289 employees as of June 30, 2018. As of September 30, 2018,
Unifrax was compliant with all employment retention and job creation requirements by reporting
323 employees. Representatives from Unifrax contacted the Agency in late September to
indicate they would be announcing permanent layoffs at the Fire Tower facility, and on
October 12, 2018, Unifrax announced the permanent layoffs of approximately 45 employees.
Unifrax is now reporting a total of 257 employees at the Fire Tower location, which is
32 employees short of its employment requirements.

Mr. Cappellino noted that Unifrax has two other locations in Erie County, at 95 Pirson
Parkway and at the corporate headquarters at 600 Riverwalk Parkway, both in the Town of
Tonawanda. Mr. Cappellino noted that the 95 Pirson Parkway project is subject to a continuing
incentive on that facility but noted both facilities have employment which is not part of the
numbers for the Fire Tower complex as described above.

Mr. Cappellino noted several recapture options were discussed by staff and the staff has
initially concluded by making two recommendations as follows: Option 1: Effectively suspend
Unifrax PILOT program until it meets its employment requirements - Unifrax would pay full
taxes until it reached its goal of 289 employees; Option 2: Increase Unifrax’s PILOT payment
amount based on the percentage that Unifrax is out of compliance with its employee headcount
requirement. Under Option 2, because Unifrax current employee headcount number represents

Page 2 of 3

3



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

an 11% shortfall, the Agency would require Unifrax to pay an additional 11% above its 2019
PILOT amount for County, Town and School PILOT payments.

General discussion ensued. Ms. Whyte expressed support for the second option, noting
that this seems consistent with past practices. Ms. McDuffie questioned whether the solution
implemented for the FedEx project could be applied here where employee headcount at all
facilities is combined as a way of showing the company is maintaining its job commitments. Mr.
Cappellino responded that in this case, even if combined, the employee headcount would still be
below the overall job requirement number. Discussion continued and Ms. Smith presented a
third option that would allow a watch period to be implemented until 2019 and if by the end of
2019, the company is not at its required employment number, then the PILOT could be
retroactively amended to recapture PILOT benefits and in this way, the company would be
encouraged to create new jobs.

Mr. Krebs stated that Option 2 seems reasonable and noted in the company’s
correspondence to the Agency that the company states that it will exceed its job requirements
when job numbers at both the Fire Tower and Pirson locations are considered by the third quarter
of 2019.

Mr. Lipsitz suggested that Option 2 is rational and related to the current project and did
not express support for combining employment numbers at various facilities.

Ms. McDuffie then expressed her support for Option 2.

Ms. Whyte requested that the item be tabled until the next Policy Committee meeting
whereat the company will be asked to attend so that more information could be gathered.

Ms. Smith asked if the “do nothing and monitor option with retroactive recapture” could
be considered.

Mr. Lipsitz stated his concern that the Policy Committee is making this too complicated
but did determine to table the matter and invite the company to attend the Policy Committee’s
January 2019 meeting, and to continue the discussion thereafter.

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Lipsitz adjourned the meeting at
10:09 a.m.

Dated: December 6, 2018

Robert G. Murray, Secretary

Page 3 of 3

4



0S£099°ES
— — e 507 Tusmsant] 0y 1981014 [ |erciddy !
A .—uu-nﬂhu‘mnvbﬂ_ ! .,co.u,.m,o.—u qof, _uﬂc_ms 'SqOF[. usuisaau] | | junolly 1Paioldd | 4 ,@EW.Z Doloig| - IUR0D
5oy oANdepy|  JIROWY aApuasu]| W13} 30 GHUE[IogEN [0 | oegmen) SIOjae
— — — = “esede Tt
= YOISoES T sqof 7 £5 00009’y $ |000'009'5$ 8190 m IN S8Y
asnay 3andepy| SZT'Evzs xe| sojeg ploysaiy
$0 uoneuuLa| S3A MIN- %58
S3A afe3uopw %58
Jaye siedh g ® STSIET'ZE € [TVUBT6 LES 2T-9ny uociny uosiaW|T
asnay aandepy|as/S/6TS ¥eL S3ES xej sajes 0 pioysaiyl
SIA £10Z Mojepuawy | jo uoneuiwiay FELY afeSuow st
12y siesd 7 sqo[Z ) 0SL'vSE'6C $ |0DO'SES PES 8T-8ny BUEY MOLIY 33131 | T
asnay aAndepy|SLEvPETS Xel s3fes xej sajes £ ) ploysaiy
jouoneulwag |  S3A MIN- %58
S3A ageduopn %58
1aye siead g o = 1007095 § [pv79T998 gT-any Aempeosg ueSiynn | T
35nay aAldepY|005Z6TS Xel s2jes xe| sajes v . pioysasyy
jouoneulwsa) | §3A MIN- %58
S3A A agedLiow %58
e emwm 2 oT sqolg 0 0€0'Z28'VE S |V60°L96°0YS 81-nf 1 puepyoN|T
989°9€6'T$ XeL s3] . ousal
SIA 1l 3seyd Aiorepuaty [jouogeujuay |  san | xey sopeg MIN- %58 Bl Mmm W
Jaye siedh 7 — = 3
. " €1 Q011 18 000700T'S § |000°000'35 8T-Inf 16y Jezatsa|L
005'268$ SEALIOWD [ | weLs3les MIN- %58 Ploysaiy
S3A 40 pouag 1071d %98
e , = wdojaaaq wwnjo) |1
"€ZES XeJ sa|eg 8 sqolg (3 000'0S5'7 $ [000°000°€$ 8L-nf awidoanaqg N
oszez SROALIONG [ o | gn MON- %58 Ploysa
S3A 30 pouad 10Td %48 5
: o sqolzT & 005'8TZ'Z ¢ |0000T9'ZS gT-unr SIS0 YYOH | T
005'9€T$ si83A £ 1OTId - xe] sajes MON- %G8 ploysan
S3A 40 pouag 1071d %S8 T
— T * 2087 esedein| T
9£0'vBTS xe] sajeg S sqol 6v 052°229°'T $ |000'STETS 8T-AeW 129
SIERA OT LONd SaA a8esuop MBN- %58 ploysasyy
S3A J0 pouRg 10Td %58 5
— e ReE) Xauayiy) A dnoig |1
esoers Yol sores « SGOT Tz 3 SL8'68TT S 005 LTS TS 81-9%4 (
s1eaj 0T 1O71Id . afesyopn M3N- %58 proysayy
S3A 4O pouag 1ONd %858 .
7 » a)
$79'593 xey sajes z sgolz 5 0SL'BEET$ |000645TS 81-934 wauidojanaq sanbav| T
- oysaiyy
- jouoneunuia) | §3A xe| sajes MaN- %58 Pi .Mmm
Jaye siedh g : . - 24 1us|T
69r'vTyS xeL sajes i sqol’g st 00£'€95Z $ |000BTOES gT-uer qed iy
hiojepuawy SIESALIOU | o azespion MIN- %38 pious
%58
S3A 10 Pakd 10d e e |
Apprz -l v ]
d
Paiea.p sqor] uopeaidqor] pauiesaysqof| wsunsanu] unowy bdloidg jeadsddy 3uie Pafosd| Iunoy
Aunb3 feq asnay aandepy| junowy aAnuaduy, wiay jo :«mcm._ _omm._ {eao]




Steve Weathers

Chief Executive Officer

Erie County Industrial Development Agency
95 Perry Street, Suite 403

Buffalo, New York 14203

Re: Reorganization in Tonawanda Operations
Dear Mr. Weathers:

As disclosed during Unifrax’s meeting with Supervisor Joe
Emminger and Mr. Cappellino on October 11" and further
discussed with you during our meeting at Unifrax CHQ on
November 7th, Unifrax has reorganized personnel and
operations at our 360 Firetower Drive facility. These changes
occurred on Friday, Oct 12" which resulted in the net reduction
of 39 positions. This change was necessitated by some global
demand shifts in our Thermal Management products produced at
the Firetower Drive location.

Unifrax is firmly committed to its manufacturing and support
operations in the Town of Tonawanda. Even after this
reorganization, Unifrax still employs 274 full time employees at
the Firetower Drive facility, and over 400 employees in Erie
County. Unifrax has invested nearly $100 million at our
production facilities and global headquarters within the last six



years which includes most recently our first production line at
the new Pirson Parkway facility that opened earlier this year.
Moreover, we are in the process of investing an additional
$30M+ to commence a second production line at the Pirson
facility creating additional jobs. Both of these lines were
initially planned for locations in Europe with the ECIDA
incentives granted being integral in the decision to locate the
lines here in Tonawanda, NY.

Given the challenges at our Firetower Drive facility, Unifrax
decided to forgo applying for any ECIDA incentives for this
additional Pirson Parkway production line investment and
associated job creation. While current total jobs are short of our
ECIDA commitments at the Firetower Drive location due to the
aforementioned challenges, headcount totals will exceed total
ECIDA commitments at an aggregate level by Q3 2019 when
considering the Firetower and Pirson locations in total.
Therefore, we ask to keep incentives granted to date fully intact
as they are vital to retaining jobs and continuing investment
locally.

We look forward to attending an upcoming ECIDA Policy

Committee meeting to discuss further.

Sincerely,

ohn Dandolph
Chief Executive Officer
Unifrax ILLC



THE ECONOMIC DEVECPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

To: ECIDA Policy Committee
Date: December 6, 2018
Re: Unifrax Recapture Options

Background

In August 2014, the ECIDA Board approved a sales and PILOT tax benefit to assist Unifrax in the construction of
a 40,230-foot manufacturing facility. Unifrax invested approx. $33,000,000 in the new facility located at 360
Firetower Drive in the Town of Tonawanda. As part of the material terms approved by the Board, Unifrax was
required to retain 268 employees and create an additional 21 positions by June 30, 2018 (two years after project
completion). Accordingly, Unifrax was required to have 289 employees as of June 30, 2018.

Unifrax received a sales tax benefit from 11/6/14 to 6/30/16. Unifrax’s PILOT program runs from 2016-2025 for
school taxes and the county and town PILOT programs run from 2017-2026.

As of September 30, 2018, Unifrax was compliant with all employment retention and job creation requirements
reporting 323 employees. Representatives from Unifrax contacted the agency in late September to indicate that
they would be announcing permanent layoffs at the Firetower facility. On October 12, 2018, Unifrax reported the
permanent layoff of approximately 45 employees.

Unifrax is now reporting a total of 257 employees at the Firetower location, which is 32 employees short of its
employment requirements. In September 2018, the ECIDA Board approved a two-tiered retention goal of 90 or 95
percent (depending on the number of employees a company has), however, the new policy does not apply to
permanently laid off employees.

Unifrax has two other locations in Erie County, 95 Pirson Parkway and the Corporate Headquarters located at 600
Riverwalk Parkway, both in the Town of Tonawanda. The ECIDA does have a continuing incentive on the
facility located at Pirson Parkway. Both facilities have employment which is not part of the numbers for the
Firetower complex as indicated below.

(as of 10/12/18)
95 Pirson Parkway 27 FTE
600 Riverwalk Parkway 117 FTE

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 » Buffalo, New York 14203 » ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com



THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

Recapture Options
Recapture options for discussion with the Policy Committee.

Option #1 — Effectively suspend Unifrax’s PILOT program until it meets the employment requirements. Unifrax
would pay full taxes until it reached its goal of 289 employees.

Example based on Current PILOT and Tax Rates Example

Full Tax Payment $ 49,621
Current PILOT Payment $ 5,892
Net (additional amount) $ 43,729

Option #2- Increase Unifrax’s PILOT amounts based on the percentage that Unifrax is out of compliance.
Unifrax was required to have 289 employees and it presently has 257 employees representing an 11 percent
shortfall in overall employment requirement. The ECIDA would require Unifrax to pay an additional 11 percent

above its 2019 PILOT amounts for the county, town, and school.

Example based on Current PILOT and Tax Rates, 11% increase

Full Tax Payment $ 49,621
Current PILOT Payment $ 5,892
11% Increase (additional amount) $ $5,344

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 » fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com



"JUBWAdNPUI NIBY] JO

uoljeuiuna) paisanbal |dy 8107
Ajdea vy ‘sseah Sujuiewal ayy oy
s1J2uaq 1 O7Id 241 Swnsas pjnom
Aayy ‘eaue)dwod ojug ydeq 138 01
d19m Asy) ‘1anamoy Ji ‘saxey ny
Aed pjnom Aay) Juendwos-uou
Aayy Jeah yoes 1oy ‘siseq Jeak

0} JeaA e uo syausq LO1ld S,1dV
:o_amc_E__m pue pouad yoiem
3yl Suunp synyauaq xel sajes

10 28e3u0W S |4V U0 uoe ou

saahojdwa 6T pey |dv

aunf ul f1dy 01 siysusq ainidedal o) Juaul
J0 210U e JU3s gH ‘STOT Aen ul ‘saaiojdwa
16T pey Aay LTOT "seN ul ‘saakojdwia

06T Pey |dv 9T0Z "3°Q ul 'syyauaq 10ld

s 1dv @inidedas 01 pa1oA 09 YaID3 ayi
9T0Z "3das ul ‘saakoldwa /7 pey Asyl 9107
yaiey ul 'sashojdwa yz pey Asyl s1oz

L1/82/t
uo Suiuuidaq pasinbai saaAojdwa

A103siH samdeday vain3

"23Q Ul ‘saaiojdws 62z pey Aayl vT0T D9q €67 J0 |2101 (£ 1/82/¢ Ag suomsod €102 J9jsuely
Papusawwodas aanwwo) Adjod ul ‘sdaAojdwa 98z pey jdy ‘€TOZ *23Q Ul | Mau g ajeasd g sashojdwa /87 ulelay 190 WIAON 1e3H |dY
i ) -mH\Hm\w uo SujuuiSaq pasnnbas |
saaAo|dwa T8 Jo |r10] ‘Aujde) Jayua
12 suonisod mau gz 31easd pue Jadoor
1e sa3A0jdwa £09 pue yeMmiaAlY G55
1e saaAojdwd 9T ulelal ;papuawly
9TQZ 49qwadaq 1s9nbau s x3-pa4 panoidde
ADUIS S39A0|dWD THY JAAO ||aMm ao4 vaid3 910z 22q ui ‘Anjioed 1adoo) 91/1€/8
Pey sey x3-pa4 ‘910z Jaqwadaq 0.1 3y wody sasAojdwa sy apn|dpul aog uo ujuui8aq pasinbas sashojdwa
ui a3ueyd ay) panoidde qog Vvald3 eyl paisanbai x3-pa4 ‘sasiojdws 0SZ 40 |r101 ‘9T /1€/8 Aq suonisod (x3
9y} aouls sansst JuswAojdwa L0T pey x3-pa4 910z "1das ut :9T7/1€/8 MaU 78 21e242 pue saahojdwa -pa4) Aemjeq
Ou U33a( aAey 313y} ‘alep o) uo sqol 05z papaau X3-pad [13un anssi oN 897 ule1al :uoirendde jeuilg €707 (udy | j|emisaly 665
o 81°986'GT$ 4O Junowe
aunidenas ay) pajuasasdas yoiym | 1ayeasay) spuswannbay uawAojdwa nayy h
|2A3] JuawAoldwsa syt ul duPdp | mojaq auam Aay) pue saakojdwa z6 pey gN
%8€ B pey gN (/T0z ‘o4 W ‘9T0Z |4dy ul {(panupuodsip asam sAaains
¥senbai s gN panosdde gog ays w13 dueldwod u) yoeq) seaiojdwa
‘81°986'STS J0 Junowe aunydedsas OTT pPey gN ¥T0Z 3das ul ‘sAsains wiagul 91/0€/9
e anoldde a0d vald3 3yl | ysnouyl Juswhiojdwa Jojuow 0y Hels yamp3 uo Suuui8aq pasinbai sashojdwa |
ey} Suiisanbal gN woyy Ja1s) Palonasul aa3wwo) Adjod vaid3 ayl | £zT Jo [e101 ‘9T/0£/9 Aq suoiyisod mau (an)
B P3AIR03 ¥(AID3 ‘LTOTZ "Uer Ul | TOZ AeIAl Ul ‘saakojdwa b6 pey gN €107 Ul LT 91ea1d g saakojdwa OTT Uiy €107 judy | 1amojg esedely
_ }nsay anss| syuawasinbai qor " paonpuj . wain
(8T/€T/TT jo se)

10



paels

19A 10U pey 10id $PMIag
‘s1)jauaq xe) sajes uj 000vH1S
predas 3o143Q ‘910z Ainf Uy
‘199foud ayy , puimal,, pinom Asyy
181 JJels vqaId3 pawuogul yousaqg
‘Jaye Ajuoys ‘13| painbai ayy
01 papunoqaJ JuawAhojdwa 113y}
31 sHjsuaq 1 01d 9yl swnsay 0]
A21443Q 104 Ajtunjioddo ay3 yum
‘liesnoys JuswAojdwa ayy Suunp
s1e3A 5,1 0id 2Y3 404 ‘Suyauaq
1071d s, 321119Q puadsns 0) pajoa
Q04 vaid3 2yl ‘910z aunf uj

saaAo|dwa 8T ¢ pey Asy;
9TOZ Ul ‘saakojdwa 6SE pey ¥21413Q ‘STOZ Ul

LT/TE/0T

uo 3uiuui8aq palinbal saaiojdwa
S8 40 €101 !/ T/T€/0T Aq suonisod
Mmau g 21easd 13 saahojdwa / /¢ uie1ay

rioz aunr

(@nq 065)
uoneiodio)
b eJBIETg]

[ pieog ayy Aq pasinbas
S 000°6TTS 241 pledas NS

paAiadal NS 1eyl

SHj2Ua( Xe] S3|es O Junowe |e10} Ayl sem
ya1ym 000’6 TzS 24n1dedas 0} pajoA paeog
vaid3 ay1 £10z Aenuer ug ‘ays 1sfoid ayy
1e paulewsa. saahojdwa g Ajuo ‘Aued payy e
01 pjos sem NS 9TOZ "3das u| —uana Jneyaq

8T/1£/¢€ Aq pasinbaa ssakoldws
SEV 0 |2301 ‘8T/1€/€ Aq suonisod mau
G9T 91ea.d 73 saakojdwa O/ 7 ulelay

107 Atenuer

(INS) @8eBuo
BO3UaS

saaho|dwa
€T pey A3yl 8107 J0 7D wi pue 1D
Jrc_ ‘ouendwod uj Apuasind st NSH

*8T07 AMes ul Juawalinbal

ay1 193w 01 JuswAojdwa N3y} paseaou)
pey AISD se ‘Adljod aumideday ayy jo

(9)s uonaas o3 juensind) AISH 1suteSe uonae
aimydedas e ansind 0} J0u yyels pajdalip
z)sdI7 peydry Jieyd sanuwwo) Adljog

R 3YNQIN epualg Jtey) pleog ‘Sunasw
30IA/IEYD S,¥AID3 BY3 Je PassnIsIp sem
anssi syl 8TOZ AeAl ui {(yD ul saaAojdwa 7T
pue ‘€D ul saafo|dwa TT ‘ZD ul $aAojdwa
0T ‘TD ut saafojdwa TT) syuawasinbai

qol s} mojaq sem SD ‘210z Inoysnoay )

91/1€/8

uo Suiuudaq pasinbai saaAojdwa

€T J0 |e101 '9T/1€/8 Aq suopsod

M3u g uielas pue saaiojdwa [T uielay

€10¢
Jaquianaq

(8T/ET/TT 40 se)
Aso1siH aumydesay vap3

(ns)) 1|m13n
199YS wolsn)

11



3dueldwod uj ase Aayy
‘AjBurpsodoe yohej Juauewnad

J0 3Insau 3y} uaaq jou sey
WawAo|dwa ) uonienyanyy Aue
‘970 22us saalojdwa g8y ueyy
310w pey sey oxapos ‘sasiojdws
S8 ute}al 1snw oxapos

‘Aajod mau ay3 0} Juensing

“|9A8| uswhojdwa pautelal a19y3 jJo

%SG6 ulelal 3snw saaAojdwa QST uey) asows
Yum saiuedwod {|aAs| JuawAhojdws paujelal
I3y} JO %06 ulelas Isnw saaAo|dwa Jama)
10 0ST yum saiuedwod :38ueys Suimol|oy
ay1 panosdde Q049 vVaID3 2y ‘8T0T 1das

ul ‘sjuawasinbal uonualal qof syl 03 salueyd
Passnasip aawwo) Adjod vaid3 ayl ‘810z
"1das B Ajnf ul 's314 Sev pey Asyl £10¢

"33Q Ui 's314 S£°80S pey Aayl £L10z 1das

(suawainbau

Ui 's314 §'0S Pey 0xapos ‘£LT0Z aunf u| | uoneatd qgol ou) sasAojdwd TT5 ulelay ST0Z 1sn3ny 0Xapos

paiels

13A J0u pey 1 OId s, PMI3Q

Sujausq xel sajes ul 000‘s9
piedau ya1143Q ‘9T0Z Al Ll (3nq 48s)
‘3sfoud ayy , puimal, pjnom Asyy GT0Z Aenuer uonesodio)
1yl Jels vaid3 pawioul yalusa Huleg

‘1938 Apuoys ‘suyauaq 10TId

S 2149Q a4nidedal 01 pajoa saahojdwa 81§ pey Asy) (syuswannbai
Q08 vd123 243 '9TOZ dunr ul | 9TOZ Ul ‘'saaA0|dwa 6SE PeY Y1IAQ ‘STOZ U | uoneasd gof ou) saahojdwa £/ utelay B
81/0¢/6

adal

30 se ouetjdwod ul a1am Asyy — saahojdws
SOE Pey xedpun ‘gTOZ €0 Ul 'sluUaWAINba
qol sl mojaq uaj|ey 10u pey xeyun ‘§TOZ 7O
JO Se {uolun s13)Jom |93)s 3y} JO saaAojdws
St Ajolewixoudde jo yohe| Jusuewsad
9Y3 pauodal xeaiun ‘810z 1290120 Y|

81/0€/9

uo 3utuuiSaq pasinbai sasAojdwa
68 Jo [e101 ‘'8T/0€/9 Aq suonisod
TT 21ea42 pue saaio|dwa g9z uielay

v10z 3snany

Anoey
Jamoladid
09¢ — xequn

(8T/€T/1T jo se)
AioysiH asmydeday yaid3

12



Unifrax 1, LLC
$33,000,000
INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

Project Title: Unifrax 1, LLC

) Up fo $130 QQQ in mortgage Project Address: 360 Firetower Drive
~ recording tax savings Tonawanda, New York 14150
(Kenmore-TTN UFSD)

NAICS: 327993

Agency Request

A sales tax, mortgage recording tax and real property tax abatement in connection with the acquisition of currently leased facilities
and the construction of a 41,000 sq. ft. facility along with the acquisition and installation of machinery and equipment.

Building Acquisition $ 9,550,000
New Construction 3,200,000
Infrastructure 2,450,000
Manufacturing Equipment 17,000,000
Non-Manufacturing Equipment 500,000
Soft Costs 300,000
Total Project Cost $33,000,000
85% $28,050,000
Estimated Mortgage $13,000,000
Company Description

Unifrax is a manufacturer of high-temperature insulation products. Unifrax fiber products are used to solve application problems in
the ferrous and non-ferrous metals, industrial chemicals, petroleum products, power generation, ceramic, glass, automotive, fire pro-
tection, aerospace, appliance and other industries.

With corporate headquarters in Tonawanda, Unifrax has three U.S. manufacturing facilities—Tonawanda and Sanborn, New York
and New Carlisle, Indiana.

Unifrax acquired three leading North American vacuum forming businesses in 2011, with manufacturing facilities in Ohio and which
specializes in the development, manufacture and sale of fiber-based value add shapes.

The company employs more than 1,600 people worldwide with 28 manufacturing facilities and various regional and sales locations
in the US, Europe, Asia, South Africa and Latin America.

Project Description

Unifrax currently leases its manufacturing, warehouse and office facilities at 300/333/and 360 Firetower Drive and owns outright
the adjacent warehouse building at 330 Firetower. They have a contract to purchase 300 Firetower and are in negotiations to
purchase the remaining two buildings. In total the company either leases or owns aver 250,000 sq. ft. in the Town.

11/6/2018 2:52 PM
13




Unifrax 1, LLC

The current project includes the construction of a 40,230 sq. ft. building which will connect the current manufacturing plant with
the warehouse. The additional space being used for manufacturing.

The Town of Tonawanda was instrumental in advancing the project providing much needed acreage by abandoning a Town-owned
cul-de-sac which was key to this expansion project.

Project Benefits

The project will generate approximately $200,000 of revenue to the local taxing jurisdictions over the abatement period
representing $26,000 to the County of Erie, $73,000 to the Town of Tonawanda and $100,000 to the Kenmore-TTN UFSD. The
project is anticipated to retain 95 jobs and create an additional 25 new jobs.

Employment

Total of Current and projected Jobs
Current New Jobs Projected 2 Years after Project Completion
268 25 293

Current Jobs to be Retained by Project
95

Project Incentives
*  Approximately $745,000 in real property tax savings
®  Approximately $398,000 in sales tax savings

¢  Approximately $130,000 in mortgage recording tax savings

PILOT Table
%payment | Est. County Est. Town Est. School Full Taxes with- | Net Exemp-
Year under PILOT PILOT PILOT PILOT Est. Total PILOT out PILOT tion

1 10% 51,225 $3,470 54,745 $9,440 $94,380 584,940

2 10% $1,225 $3,470 54,745 $9,440 $94,380 584,940

3 10% $1,225 $3,470 54,745 $9,440 $94,380 $84,940

4 20% $2,447 56,938 $9,490 $18,875 $94,380 $75,505

5 20% $2,447 $6,938 $9,490 $18,875 $94,380 $75,505

6 20% $2,447 $6,938 $9,490 $18,875 $94,380 $75,505

7 30% $3,670 $10,400 $14,230 $28,300 $94,380 $66,080

8 30% $3,670 $10,400 $14,230 $28,300 594,380 $66,080

9 30% $3,670 $10,400 $14,230 $28,300 $94,380 $66,080
10 30% $3,670 $10,400 $14,230 $28,300 $94,380 $66,080
TOTAL $25,696 $72,824 $99,625 $198,145 $943,800 $745,655

PAYMENTS

14



Unifrax 1, LLC

Draft Recapture Material Terms

Condition Term Recapture Provision
Total Investment At project completion Investment amount equal to or greater than 85% of project
amount

Total Project Amount = $33,000,000
85% of total project amount = $28,050,000

Employment See Recapture Period Maintain 100% of base (268) an 85% of projected jobs
Projected Jobs (25) =289
85%: 21

Total Jobs: 289

Local Labor Construction Period Adberence to policy including quarterly reporting

Recapture Period Coincides with 10-Year PILOT | Recapture of State and Local Sales Taxes, mortgage record-
term ing tax and real property tax

Recapture applies to:

e State and local sales taxes
¢ Mortgage recording tax
e Real property tax

Pursuant to Section 875 of New York General Municipal Law, the agency may recover or recapture from the company
any state sales and use tax exemption benefits taken by the company that are in violation of the GML.

In addition, it is the recommendation of the ECIDA’s Policy Committee to recapture the local portion of the sales tax,
mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes.

At completion of project company must certify i) total investment amount equal to or greater than 85% of amount
proposed ii) confirm that company will maintain base employment of 268 and hire an additional 21 iii) confirm
adherence to ECCIDA local labor hiring policy.

Project History
7/31/14 Public Hearing held. Transcript attached
8/19/14 Inducement Resolution presented to Board of Directors authorizing adoption of a Negative Declaration
in accordance with SEQRA.
8/19/14 Lease/Leaseback inducement Resolution presented to the Board of Directors.
Company History
1988 $4,250,000 Project Closed
1996 $6,539,300 Project Closed
2000 $2,200,000 Project Closed
2002 $86,000 New York State Environmental Management Investment Grant
2011 $3,035,000 Project Closed

15



